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HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Axis Capital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Axis Capital Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2020, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements. As part of an
audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at Aprit 01, 2018 included in these Ind AS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by us whose report for
the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2019 dated April 13, 2018 and April 11, 2019
respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those Ind AS financial statements, as adjusted for
the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS,
which have been audited by us.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1”7, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books;

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive

Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed

under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020,

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure 2”;

. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 23 on Contingent Liabilities to the Ind AS financial
statements;
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(ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAl Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

UDIN: 20118970AAAACC1462

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2020
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Axis Capital
Limited on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information
and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we report that

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of fixed assets to cover all the
items in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties. Therefore, clause 3(i) (c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company’s stock-in trade comprises of securities, which is held in dematerialised form.
Securities held as stock-in-trade by the custodian are verified with the confirmation
statement received from them on a regular basis during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of these verifications are reasonable. The Company is maintaining proper
records of securities held as stock-in-trade and no material discrepancies were noticed on
comparing the statement from custodian with book records.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

{(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax (GST) and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it, except that the delays in deposit have not been
serious. During the year 2017-18, sales tax, value added tax, service tax and duty of excise
subsumed in GST and are accordingly reported under GST.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and
ervice tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the
ar end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

Continuaiion Sheet
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(b) The dues outstanding with respect to income tax, municipal tax and service tax on

account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of Nature of dues Amount in | Period to which Forum where
the statute lakhs the amount dispute is pending
relates

Income tax | Income Tax and 185.55 | A.Y. 2010 - 2011 | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Interest Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income tax | Income Tax and 572.62 | A.Y. 2012 - 2013 | Assistant

Act, 1961 Interest Commissioner of
Income Tax

Income tax | Income Tax and 1.98 | AY. 2014 - 2015 | Assistant

Act, 1961 Interest Commissioner of
Income Tax

Income tax | Income Tax and 109.97 | A.Y. 2018 - 2019 | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 Interest | Income Tax
(Appeals)

Municipal Tax and Interest 63.06 | April 2001 to | Supreme Court

Corporation | September 2012

Act, 1888

Finance Act, | Service Tax and 2058.82 | July 2012 to | Customs Excise and

1994 Penalty September 2014 | Service tax
Appellate Tribunal

During the year, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
bank. Further, the Company does not have any dues payable to financial institutions,
governments or debenture holders.

(viti)

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i)

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

x)

Managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xi)

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause 3(xii) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiii)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
ully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, clause 3(xiv) of the Order
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(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them during the year and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Membership No. 118970
UDIN: 20118970AAAACC1462

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Axis Capital Limited on the Ind AS
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Axis Capital
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Partner
Membership No. 118970
UDIN: 20118970AAAACC1462

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2020



AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

(X In Jakhs)
Note As at As at As at
No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
ASSETS
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 5,740.15 335.15 5,260.66
Bank Balance other than cash & cash equivalents 4 19,415.02 23,869.61 31,580.32
Receivable
(i) Trade receivables 5 88,921.37 36,063.00 86,748.45
{ii) Other receivables S5A - - 94.70
Loans 6 - 3.95 5.06
Investments 7 12,016.68 12,325.88 10,335.53
Other financial assets 8 10,194.50 488,92 472.07
Total financial assets (A) 1,36,291.72 73,086.51 1,34,496.79
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Inventories 9 - - -
Current tax assets {net) 10 595.28 1,095.51 968.85
Deferred tax assets (net) 33 24.40 46.06 30.32
Property, plant and equipment 11 184.76 227.38 79.83
Intangible assets under development 12 15.96 26.73 9.74
Other intangible assets 13 97.06 2491 28.50
Other non-financial assets 14 144.66 153.36 137.37
Total non-financial assets (B) 1,062.12 1,573.95 1,254.61
Total Assets (A+B) 1,37,353.84 74,660.46 1,35,751.40
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Payables
Trade payables 15
Due to micro and small enterprises 17.01 11.93 -
Due to others 92,809.35 32,671.05 82,426.24
Other payables 16 216 1.08 28.53
Borrowings 17 96.35 2,098.37 -
Other financial liabilities 18 9.81 15.44 5.61
Total financial liabllities {A) 92,934.68 34,797.87 82,460.38
NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current tax liabilities {net) 19 416.14 98.26 211.31
Provisions 20 3,200.93 4,082.16 8,059.06
Other non-financial liabilities 21 1,005.51 884.99 2,279.96
Total non-financial llabilities (B} 4,622.58 5,065.41 10,550.33
EQUITY
Equity share capital 22 7,350.00 7,350.00 7,350.00
Other equity 23 32,446.58 27,447 .18 35,390.69
Total Equity {C) 39,796.58 34,797.18 42,740.69
Total liabllities and equity (A+B+C) 1,37,353.84 74,660.46 1,35,751.40
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per report of even date /_ » For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP -

Chartered Accountants W '

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048 ] S~ .Pd
Amitabh Chaudhry  / salil Pitale
Cheirman / Jt. MD and Co-CEO Jt. MD and Co-CEO
DIN No. =- 0531120 DIN No. :- 07824218 DIN No. :- 06988113

Neelesh Baheti
Chief Financial Officer

M. Natarajan
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Date: 15 May 2020




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

® in lakhs)
Note Fortheyearended For the year ended
No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operation
(a) Fees from advisory services and other professional services 24 12,981.95 10,418.70
(b) Brokerage Income 24 11,077.10 10,858.79
(c ) Other Operating Income 24 9.65 229.92
Total Revenue from Operations (A) 24,068.70 21,507.41
Other income (B) 25 2,974.62 2,712.31
Total income (A+B) (1) 27,043.32 24,219.72
Finance costs 26 57.66 46.31
Impairment of financial instruments 27 64.36 43.51
Employee benefit expense 28 11,614.79 8,072.60
Depreciation and amortization 29 122.26 75.69
Other expenses 30 5,058.29 6,635.98
Total Expenses (2) 16,917.36 14,874.09
Profit/{loss) before tax (3)= (1-2) 10,125.96 9,345.63
Tax expenses:
Current tax 3,526.00 3,407.00
Short / (Excess) provision for tax of earlier years (77.13) {173.74)
Deferred Tax 21.66 (15.74)
Total tax expense (4) 32 3,470.53 3,217.52
Profit/{loss) for the year (5) =(3-4) 6,655.43 6,128.11
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified in profit and loss
Fair value of gratuity through other comprehensive income (net of tax) 36.14 105.69
Other comprehensive income (6) 36.14 105.69
Total comprehensive income for the year (7)= (5+6) 6,691.57 6,233.80
Earning per equity share:
[Nominal value per share ¥10 (31 March 2019: ¥10)]
Basic ) 9.06 8.34
Diluted ) 9.06 8.34
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per report of even date / ﬁor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

/

Chartered Accountants ( o ) }\\0\1
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048 ——— / g
ZON Amitabh Chaudhry Salil Pitale Chirag andhi

Chairman Jt. MD and Co-CEO Jt. MD and Co-CEO

DIN No. :- 0531120 DIN No. :- 07824218 DIN o - 06988113
Neelesh Baheti M. Natarajan

Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: 15 May 2020 Place: Mumbai Date: 15 May 2020




AXIS CAPITAL LUMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(% In lakhs}
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A) Cash flows from operating activitles
Profit/{loss) before taxes 10,162.12 9,451.31
Non cash & non operating adjustments:
Net gain on fair value instruments at fair value through profit or loss {531.54) (514.04)
interest income on deposit with banks (2,092.60) (2,052.66)
Interest income on staff loan and deposits (1.08) (1.31)
Interest on overdraft 47.29 41.83
Interest on lease payment 10.37 4.48
Reversal of liabllity no longer required (329.71) (98.26)
Depreciation and amortisation 122.26 75.69
Unrealised foreign exchange {gain)/loss (7.28) {2.05)
Provision for contingent liabilities - 14.06
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 101.45 104.83
Bad debts and sundry balances written off 0.05 170.56
Reversal of provision of doubtful debts (37.14) (231.88)
Bad advances written off - 2,63
Reversal of provision for doubtful advances - {2.63)
Fair valuation of share based payments to employees 3,402,79
Loss on fair value of deposits - 4.07
Loss / (profit) on sale of fixed assets - {2.25)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 10,826.98 6,959.38
Movement in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables {52,902.74) 50,647.46
Decrease / (increase) in other receivables - 94.70
Decrease / (increase) in loans 4.00 1.27
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets {9,704.55) (18.22)
Decrease / (increase) in other non-financial assets 8.70 (16.00)
Increase / {decrease) in trade payables 60,456.43 {49,650.56}
Increase / [decrease) in Others financial liabilities (5.63) 9.83
Increase / (decrease) in provisions (864.57) (3,985.39)
Increase / {decrease) in others non-financial liabifities 120.52 {1,394.97)
Cash generated from operations 7,959.14 2,647,51
Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (2,643.49) (3,472.98)
Net cash from operating activiles 5,315.65 {825.47)
B) Cash flow from investing activitles
Purchase of fixed assets including intangible assets under development (139.93) {105.65)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assels - 2,25
Purchase of investments (1,41,728.62) (1,38,994.00)
Sale of investments 1,42,569.36 1,38,013.59
Investment in subsidiary - (495.88)
Investrment in bank fixed deposit {41,021.20) (20,469.40)
Redetnption of bank fived deposit 45,616.20 28,108.75
Interest received 1,948.18 2,124.01
Net cash used in investing activities 7,243.99 8,183.67
C) Cash flows from financing activities
Equity dividend paid (4,226,25) (11,760.00)
Tax on equity dividend paid (868.72) {2,417.30)
interest on lease payment {10.37) (4.48)
Lease liability (47.58) (14.52)
Interest on overdraft paid (47.29) (41.83)
Proceeds from / {repayment of) short term borrowings {1,954.43) 1,954.43
Net cash used In financing activities ({7,154.64) {12,283.70)
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 5,405.00 {4,925.50)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 335.15 5,260.65
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 5,740.15 335.15
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.70 0.41
Balances with banks:
-On current accounts 5,739.45 334.74
Totalt 5,740.15 335.15

Note: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - Cash Flow Statement.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial sta t.eruery,..‘
7 /)
/ / ! For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amitabh Chaudhry / Salll Pitale Chirag N
Chairman
DIN No. :- 0531120

N = -

0fN No. ;- 06988113

Neelesh Baheti M. Natarajan

Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai 1
Date: 15 May 2020 - Place: Mumbai Date: 15 May 2020




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Changes In Equity

A. Equity share capital

{¥ in lakhs)
- Ba!ant_:e atthe Changesin e.qmty Balance at the
Particulars beginning of the share capital
. end of the year
year during the year
Equity shares of ¥10 each fully paid up
As on 01 April 2018 7,350.00 - 7,350.00
As on 31 March 2019 7,350.00 3 7,350.00
As on 31 March 2020 7,350.00 - 7,350.00
B. Other equity
{T in lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Contilution Total
General Reserve Retained earnings from
Shareholders

Opening balance as on 01 April,2018 1,292.37 34,098.32 - 35,390.69
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 6,128.10 - 6,128.10
Remeasurement gains on employee benefits - 105.69 - 105.69
Dividend paid - (11,760.00) - {11,760.00)
Dividend Distribution Tax - (2,417.30) - (2,417.30)
Changes during the year - {7,943.51) - {7,943.51)
Closing balance as on 31 March 2019 1,292.37 26,155.81 - 27,447.18
Opening balance as on 31 March 2019 1,292.37 26,155.81 - 27,447.18
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 6,655.44 - 6,655.44
Remeasurement gains on employee benefits = 36.14 - 36.14
Dividend paid - (4,226.25) - (4,226.25)
Dividend Distribution Tax - (868.72) - (868.72)
Share based payments to employees - contribution - - 3,402.79 3,402.79
Changes during the vear - 1,596.61 3,402.79 4,999.40
Closing balance as on 31 March 2020 1,292.37 27,752.42 3,402.79 32,446.58

)
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

L

Nature of operations

Axis Capital Limited (‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled in India. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Axis Bank Limited (‘the Bank’). The Company is in the business of institutional broking, investment
banking and distribution of financial products.

2. Basis of preparation

A. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company has adopted Ind AS from April 1, 2019 with effective transition date of April 1, 2018 and
accordingly, these financial statements together with the comparative reporting period have been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles as laid down in Ind AS, prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The transition to Ind AS has been carried out from the erstwhile Accounting Standards
notified under the Act read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended) and other generally
accepted accounting principles in India (collectively referred to as ‘the Previous GAAP’). Accordingly, the impact
of transition has been recorded in the opening reserves as at April 1, 2018 and the comparative previous year has
been restated / reclassified. Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition from Previous GAAP
to Ind AS on the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement are provided in Note 51.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous
year.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the financial years presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of

the opening Ind AS balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 being the ‘date of transition to Ind AS’.

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 May, 2020.

. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All the amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS),
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis as per the Act, except for:

i.Financial instruments — measured at fair value

ii. Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
D. Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of judgements, estimates and
assumptions for some items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the balance
sheet and statement of profit and loss. The actual amounts realized may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are recognised in particular for:

a. Revenue
Recognition of revenue over time or at a point in time: The Company recognises revenue from Issue
management and financial advisory services at a point in time based on milestones as per the agreement
with the client except underwriting commission which for which performance obligation is satisfied over a
period of time.

b. Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant, equipment

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes
and maintenance support and supported by independent assessment by professionals.

¢. Recognition and Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation. Key
actuarial assumptions which form the basis of above valuation includes discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, demographics and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds
correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Further details are disclosed
in Note 39.

d. Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and depreciation carry-
forwards could be utilized.

e. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow
of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of
resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

f. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or

imated using another valuation technique. ¢ J-/

C?o_




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use
of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Refer Note 49 about determination
of fair value. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposures, the company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit
risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured at
amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the above financial assets are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. The company follows ‘simplified
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under this approach the
company does not track changes in credit risk but recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length,
for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the performance of the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive
to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

E. Standards issued but not effective:

b.

The amendments are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2020:

i. Issue of Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts
Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. It establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. Under
the Ind AS 117 model, insurance contract liabilities will be calculated as the present value of future
insurance cash flows with a provision for risk. Application of this standard is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to existing Standards
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:

i. Ind AS 103 — Business Combination

ii. Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

Ind AS 40 — Investment Property

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the new amendments issued but not yet
effective.

L o




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

F. Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements is as given
below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial

statements.

a. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/
part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from
that of the remaining asset.

b. Depreciation on plant, property and equipment
Depreciation on plant, property and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at,

based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The Company has used the following rates to provide
depreciation on its plant, property and equipment.

Useful lives estimated by the Useful Life as per prescribed in
management (years) Schedule Il of the Act {year)
Computers 3 3
Furniture and fixtures 10 10
Office equipment 2-10 5
Vehicles 4 10

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful lives of the
following classes of assets.
) The useful lives of certain office equipment are estimated as 3 to 10 years.

° Furniture and fixtures and vehicles are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 10 years and 4




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Transition date:

The entity has efected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised
as of April 1, 2018 (the transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its
deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Development expenditure on software is capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the
expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or seli the asset. Otherwise it is recognized in the profit or loss.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the
expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is
changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Rates (SLM)
Computer software 20%

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
if any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. If such recoverable
amount of asset or recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to, is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impaired loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and value in use.

Transition date:
The entity has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised
as of April 1, 2018 (the transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its

s

deemed cost as of the transition date.



AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

e. Revenue recognition

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a
single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:

Brokerage -
i.Brokerage income in relation to stock broking activity is recognized as per contracted rates at the execution of

transactions on behalf of the customers on a trade date basis.
ii. Gains/losses on dealing in securities are recognized on a trade date basis.

investment Banking
i.Revenue from issue management and financial advisory services is recognized based on the stage of completion

of performance obligations and terms of agreement with the client.

ii. Revenue from underwriting commission is recognised over a period of satisfaction of performance obligation.

jii. Selling commissions/brokerage generated from primary market operations i.e. procuring subscriptions from
investors for public offerings of companies, mutual funds, etc. are recorded on determination of the amount due
to the Company, once the allotment of securities are completed.

Interest and dividend -

i.Interest income on financial assets is recognized on an accrual basis using effective interest method. Interest
revenue is continued to be recognized at the original effective interest rate applied on the gross carrying amount
of assets falling under impairment stages 1 and 2 as against on amortised cost for the assets falling under

impairment stage 3.
ii. Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend has been established by the

reporting date.

f. Inventories

Securities acquired with the intention of short-term holding and trading are classified as inventories. The
securities held as inventories are valued at lower of cost arrived at on first in first out basis or marketable fair
value. Any loss on valuation is routed through statement of profit and loss.

g. Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

The investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried in these financial statements at
historical ‘cost’. Where the carrying amount of an investment in greater than its estimated recoverable amount,
it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

h. Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

" g




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

As a Lessee

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. In addition, the
right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements
of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

— Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties
for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. it is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property amd hence
disclosed in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘Borrowings’ in the statement of financial

position.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to
depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of real estate

nts associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. o




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the retrospective approach and therefore the comparative
information has been restated.

Due to this amendment, the right-of-use asset is recognised since the commencement of the lease, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate on the date of transaction. Accordingly, a right-of-use
asset of Rs. 158.45 lakhs and a corresponding lease liability of Rs.158.45 lakhs has been recognized on the date of
transaction. The principal portion of the lease payments have been disclosed under cash flow from financing
activities. The lease payments for operating leases as per Ind AS 17 - Leases, were earlier reported under cash
flow from operating activities.

i. Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)) are added to the fair value on initial
recognition.

Financial Assets
The financial assets are accounted on Trade date basis.

For subsequent recognition, financial assets are categorised into

.Amortised Cost:

The Company classifies the financial assets at amortised cost if the contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and the assets are held under a business
model to collect contractual cash flows. The gains and losses resulting from fluctuations in fair value are not
recognised for financial assets classified in amortised cost measurement category.

i.Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI):
The Company classifies the financial assets as FVOC| if the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and the Company’s business model is achieved by

both collecting contractual cash flow and selling financial assets. In case of debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. The impairment gains or losses, foreign
exchange gains or losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or
loss. On de-recognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. In case of equity instruments irrevocably
designated at FVOCI, gains / losses including relating to foreign exchange, are recognised through other
comprehensive income. Further, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income remain permanently in equity and are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss on derecognition.

ii. Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account (FVTPL)

The financial assets are classified as FVTPL if these do not meet the criteria for classifying at amortised cost or
FVOCI. Further, in certain cases to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency
{accounting mismatch), the Company irrevocably designates certain financial instruments at FVTPL at initial
recognition. |n case of financial assets measured at FVTPL, change in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

Profit and loss on sale of investment is determined on the basis of weighted average cost. Fair vaiue is the price

tion to sell the asset or transfer the Ii..fl_/bj.,l%t&’;:tﬂ_\]‘_{“e?: place either: C{° Q\“\j\_/
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market,

in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair
value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments
are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, as summarised below:

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (e.g. as prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from the prices).

Level 3: inputs for the current assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through” arrangement
and either;

a. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Based on the Company’s business model for managing the investments, the Company has classified its investments in mutu
amount approximates the fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent Measurement

This is dependent upon the classification thereof as under:
(i) At Amortised Cost

(i) At Fair value through Profit & loss Account

. W




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as
well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
Derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise an asset and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements. These are recognized at the amount of the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Impairment of Financial Asset:

The company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on the following financial assets and credit risk exposures:

° Financial assets at amortized cost
° Financial guarantee contracts.

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
Under this approach the company does not track changes in credit risk but recognizes impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. For this purpose the company uses a provision matrix to
determine the impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposures, the company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. The ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period in the statement of
profit and loss and the cumulative loss is reduced from the carrying amount of the asset until it meets the write
off criteria, which is generally when no cash flows are expected to be realised from the asset.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans
Provision for Gratuity is recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary using
Projected Unit Credit Method.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration
is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments
within the plans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Net interest expense / (income) on the defined liability / (assets) is
computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability / (asset). Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occurs.,

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Share based payments

Employees Stock Options Plans (“ESOPs") - Equity settled

The Trust in consultantion with the holding Company grants share option schemes for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Company’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity settled transactions”).

NS




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The cost of equity-settied transactions with employees and directors for grants is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
statement profit and loss, together with a corresponding increase in other equity, representing contribution
received from the shareholders, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

m. Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be
paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years.
Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary timing differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized
deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings. Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of assets that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized along with the respective fixed
asset up to the date such asset is ready for use. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

0. Foreign currency transactions and balances
(i) Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency (which is Indian Rupees), by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

q.

S.

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-
monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or
other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date
when such value was determined.

(iii) Exchange differences

All exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or as
expenses in the period in which they arise.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segmental Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The Joint Managing Directors and CEO of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company and make strategic decisions and hence has been identified as being chief operating decision maker.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based
on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Where there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements if the inflow of the economic benefit is probable
an it is disclosed in the financial statements.
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
t. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-

term investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

3. Cash and bank balances

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
R in lakhs) (T in lakhs) R in lakhs)

Cash and cash equivalents

-Cash on hand 0.70 0.41 0.56
Balances with banks:
-On current accounts 5,739.45 334.74 5,260.10
Total 5,740.15 335.15 5,260.66
4. Bank Bal other than cash & cash ival

As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31March 2019 01 April 2018
X in lakhs) (% In lakhs) {T in lakhs)

Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months

Lien marked deposits (The period of lien is in line with the period 18,067.96 22,366.26 31,433.65

of fixed deposit)

Other Deposits 1,351.06 1,503.35 146.67
Total 19,419.02 23,869.61 31,580.32
5. Trade receivables

As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
(T in lakhs) X in lakhs) X in lakhs)

Unsecured, considered good 89,091.40 36,168.73 86,981.23
Sub total 89,091.40 36,168.73 86,981.23
Less: Impairment loss allowance (170.03) (105.73) (232.78)
Total 88,921.37 36,063.00 86,748.45

5A. Other receivables

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
(X in lakhs) X in lakhs) (T in lakhs)

Unsecured, considered good = = 94,70
Sub total = 4 94.70
Less: Impairment Allowance = = .
Total - - 94.70
6. Loans

As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
R in lakhs) (X in lakhs) {X In lakhs)

Loans at Amortised Cost

(A) staff Loans 3.95 5.06
Sub total - 3.95 5.06
Less: Impairment Loss E

Total {A) E 3.95 5.06
(B} Unsecured - 3.95 5.06
Sub total - 3.95 5.06
Less: Impairment Loss - - -
Total (B) - 3.95 5.06

©

(i) Loans in India

Others . 3.95 5.06
Sub total - 3.95 5.06
Less: Impairment Loss =

Total {C }(I) - 3.95 5.06
(ii) Loans outside India

Others

Sub total - - =
Less: Impairment Loss

Total (€ )(#) 3 R 7

Total (C )(i)+{ii) - 3.95 5.06
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March , 2020

8. Other financiaf assets

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
T in lakhs) (T in lakhs) {T In lakhs)
Security/margin deposit
-with stock exchanges 9,973.25 173.25 198.35
-others 21.55 25.14 13.87

Advance recoverable in cash

-Recoverable from related parties - 27.14 25.58

-Recoverable from others 192.54 251.50 192.20
Income receivable 7.16 11.89 44.70
Sub total 10,194.50 488.92 A474.70
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - (2.63)
Total 10,194.50 488,92 472.07
9. rles

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
{No of Shares} T in lakhs) [No of Shares) (X In lakhs)  (No of Shares) X in lakhs)

Opening - - . - 50 0.02
Purchase 39,30,369 13,345.70 12,26,215 4,186.86 23,18,861 5,619.77
Sale (at cost)* 39,30,369 13,345.70 12,26,215 4,186.86 23,18,911 5,619.79
Closing - - - - - -
Total

* profit (net) of T6.49 lakhs [31 March 2019: Loss (net) of T4.84 lakhs and 31 March 2018: Loss (net) of T2.94) on sale of these shares has been disclosed under Note 24

"Revenue from operations" and Note 30 "Other expenses"]

10. Current tax assets {net)

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
(T in lakhs) (¥ In lakhs) (T in lakhs)
Advance income-tax [Net of provision of ¥22,621.53 lakhs (31 March 595.28 1,095.51 968.85
2019: ¥36,764.53 lakhs and 01 April 2018: ¥37,012.00 lakhs)]
Total 595.28 1,095.51 968.85




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

11. Property, plant and equipment

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Computers Furniture | Vehicles | Office Equipment | Right to use Total
Deemed cost as on 01 April, 2018 69.38 1.18 - 9.26 - 79.83
Additions during the year 51.85 - - 3.55 158.45 213.85
Disposals during the year - - - - - -
At cost as on 31 March, 2019 121.23 1.18 - 12.82 158.45 293.68
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
as on 31 March, 2018 = = = = = =
Depreciation for the year 48.58 0.23 - 2.97 14.52 66.30
Disposals during the year = - - - - =
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
as on 31 March, 2019 48.58 0.23 - 2.97 - 66.30
Net carrying amount as on 31 March , 2019 72.65 0.96 - 9.85 - 227.38
At cost as on 31 March, 2019 121.23 1.18 - 12.82 158.45 293.68
Additions during the year 54.02 - - 4.74 = 58.76
Disposals during the year - - - - - -
At cost as on 31 March, 2020 175.25 1.18 - 17.56 158.45 352.44
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
as on 31 March , 2019 48.58 0.23 - 2.97 14.52 66.30
Depreciation for the year 50.67 0.23 - 2.90 47.58 101.38
Disposals during the year - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
as on 31 March , 2020 99.25 0.46 - 5.87 62.10 167.68
Net carrying amount as on 31 March, 2020 76.00 0.73 - 11.69 96.35 184.76
Net carrying amount as on 31 March , 2019 72.65 0.96 - 9.85 - 227.38
Net carrying amount as on 01 April , 2018 69.38 1.18 - 9.26 - 79.83

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption as per Ind AS 101 in relation to the property plant and equipment as on the date of
transition {April 1, 2018) and hence the net block carrying amount has been considered as the gross block carrying amount on that date. Refer
note below for the gross block value and the accumulated depreciation on April 1, 2018 under the previous GAAP

{T in lakhs)
Particulars Computers Furniture | Vehicles | Office Equipment Total
Gross Block 384.77 2.66 0.13 38.36 425.93
Accumulated Depreciation 315.39 1.48 0.13 29.10 346.09
Net Block 69.38 1.18 - 9.26 79.84
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

12. Intangible assets under development

X in lakhs)
intangible

Particulars assets under

development
Deemed cost as on 01 April, 2018 9.74
Additions during the year 22.80
Capitalised during the year 5.81
At cost as on 31 March , 2019 26.73
At cost as on 31 March, 2019 26.73
Additions during the year 3171
Capitalised during the year 42.48
At cost as on 31 March, 2020 15.96
13. Other Intangibles

(Z in lakhs)
Particulars Software Website Total
development cost

Deemed cost as on 01 April, 2018 28.50 - 28.50
Additions during the year - 5.81 5.81
Disposals during the year = - -
At cost as on 31 March, 2019 28.50 5.81 34.31
Accumulated depreciation and impairment as on 31
March, 2018 . . -
Amortisation for the year 8.30 1.10 9.40
Disposals during the year - - -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment as on 31
March. 2019 8.30 1.10 9.40
Net carrving amount as on 31 March, 2019 20.20 4.71 24.91
At cost as on 31 March, 2019 28.50 5.81 34.31
Additions during the year 93.03 - 93.03
Disposals during the year - - -
At cost as on 31 March, 2020 121.53 5.81 127.34
Accumulated depreciation and impairment as on 31
March , 2019 8.30 1.10 9.40
Amortisation for the year 19.72 1.16 20.88
Disposals during the year = - =
Accumulated depreciation and impairment as on 31
March , 2020 28.02 2.26 30.28
Net carrying amount as on 31 March, 2020 93.51 3.54 97.06
Net carrving amount as on 31 March, 2019 20.20 4.71 24.91
Net carrving amount as on 01 April, 2018 28.50 - 28.50

The Company has availed the deemed cost exemption as per Ind AS 101 in relation to the intangible assets
as on the date of transition (April 1, 2018) and hence the net block carrying amount has been considered as
the gross block carrying amount on that date. Refer note below for the gross block value and the
accumulated depreciation on April 1, 2018 under the previous GAAP.

(¥ in lakhs)
P,/anigrlars Software d O Total
AR evelopment cost
5rGss Bloek 41.50 = 41.50
Accumul ,'ﬁel( Depreciation 13.00 - 13.00
28.50 -
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the yeer ended 31 March, 2020

14. Other non-financial assets

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
(% in lakhs) (R in lakhs) {X in lakhs)

Deposit with service tax authoritias paid under protest 76.25 76.25 -
Prepaid expenses 48.81 51.69 49.09
Gratuity Assets (funded) - 9.35 -
Advance towards expenses 19.60 16.07 88.28
Total 144.66 153.36 137.37

15 .Trade Payables

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
R in lakhs) {T in lakhs) R in lakhs)

Trade payables
-Due to micro and small enterprises 17.01 11.93 -
-Due to related parties 46.19 0.51 27.77
-Due to others 92,763.16 32,670.53 82,398.47
Total 92,826.36 32,682.97 82,426.24

16.0ther Payabl

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
{T in lakhs) {T in lakhs) {T In lakhs}
Capital Creditors 2.16 1.08 28.53
Total 2.16 1.08 28.53

17. Borrowings

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
X in lakhs) X in lakhs) (X In lakhs)

Bank overdraft {(secured against fixed deposits) - 1,954.43 -
Lease Liability 96.35 143.94
Total 96.35 2,098.37 =
18. Others financial labilities

As at As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
X in lakhs} X In lakhs) (X In lakhs)
Payable to Employees 9.81 15.44 5.61
Total 9.81 15.44 5.61

19. Current tax liabllitles {net)

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
% in lakhs) % in lakhs} R In lakhs)

Provision for tax [net of advance tax of ¥3,109.86 lakhs (31 March 416.14 98.26 211.31
2019:3,308.74 and 01 April 2018: 37,247.21))
Total 416.14 98.26 21131

20. Provisions

As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
X in lakhs) (% in lakhs) {T in lakhs)

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity payable (funded) 8.06 - 235,51

Provision for compensated absences 20.14 7.61 10.50

Provision for bonus 3,133.67 4,002.16 7,754.72
3,161.87 4,009.77 8,000.73

Other provisions

Provision for litigation 39.06 72.39 58.33

39.06 72.39 58.33
Total 3,200.93 4,082.16 8,059.06
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March , 2020

21, Others non-fi ial liabilities
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
X in lakhs) R in lakhs) {T in lakhs)
Others
-Statutory dues 1,005.20 884.99 2,184.34
-Advance from customers 0.31 - -
Income received in advance - - 95.62
Total 1,005.51 884.99 2,279.96
22, Share capital
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
R In lakhs) {% In lakhs) X In lakhs)
Authorised share capital
175,000,000 (31 March 2019: 175,000,000) (01 April 2018: 175,000,000) equity shares of T10/- each) 17,500.00 17,500.00 17,500.00
Issued share capital
73,500,000 (31 March 2019: 73,500,000) (01 April 2018: 73,500,000)equity shares of ¥10/- each) 7,350.00 7,350.00 7,350.00
Subscribed and fully paid-up shares
73,500,000 (31 March 2019: 73,500,000) (01 April 2018: 73,500,000)equity shares of I10/- each) 7,350.00 7,350.00 7,350.00
{a) Reconciliation of the sh ding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
No. {¥ in lakhs) No. {X in lakhs) No. in lakhs ¥ in lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 7,35,00,000 7,350.00 7,35,00,000 7,350.00 7,35,00,000 7,350.00
Issued during the year - - - - -
Cancelled during the year - - - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 7,35,00,000 7,350.00 7,35,00,000 7.350.00 7.35,00,000 7,350.00

(b) Terms/right attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 10/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the period ended 31 March 2020, the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was ¥5.75 {including interim dividend of T1.25)

(31 March 2019:316/-).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential

amounts. The distribution wlll be in the proportion of the number of shares held by the shareholders.

&
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AXIS CAPITAL UIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding Company and/ or their subsidiaries/ assoclates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries / assaciates are as below:

nName of sharehalder 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
No. % of holdi No. % of holding No. % of holdi
Axis Bank Limited, the holding Company and its nominees
73,500,000 (31 March 2019: 73,500,000) (01 April 2018:
73,500,000)equity shares of Z10/- each) 73,50,00,000 100%  73,50,00,000 100%  73,50,00,000 100%
{d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% sh in the Company
Name of shareholder 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018
No. % of holding No. % of holding No. % of holding
Axis Bank Limited, the holding Company and its nominees
73,500,000 (3t March 2019: 73,500,000) (01 April 2018:
500,000 (31 Marc /000) (01 Apri 7,35,00,000 100% 7,350,000 100%  7,35,00,000 100%

73,500,000)equity shares of T10/- each)

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(e) Proposed dividends on Equity shares
The Board proposed dividend on equity shares after the balance sheet date.

i T

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
X in lakhs) R In lakhs)
Proposed dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 31 March 2020: T6 per share
(31 F:wan:h 2019: ?450/-qp::, share) 431000 B:20420
Dividend Distribution Tax on proposed dividend on equity shares 679.87
Total 4,410.00 3,987.37
23. Other equlty
As at As at As at
31 mMarch 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
{X in lakhs) [ In lakhs) { in lakhs)
General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,292.37 1,292.37 1,292.37
Add: Addition during the year - - -
Balance as at end of the year 1,292.37 1,292.37 1,292.37
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 26,154.81 34,008.32 32,467.00
Add: Comprehensive income for the year 6,655.44 6,128.10 13,922.26
Add: Remeasurement gains on employee benefits 36.14 105.69 93.86
Less: Dividend paid (4,226.25) (11,760.00) (10,290.00)
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax (868.72) (2,417.30) (2,094.80)
Balance as at end of the year 27,751.42 26,154.81 34,098.32
Contribution from Shareholders
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year 3,402.79 - -
Balance as at end of the year 3,402.79 - -
Total 32,446.58 27,447.18 35,390.69

Nature and purpose of the reserve

General Reserve

General Reserve was created earlier for specific purpose and are available for distribution to shareholders as dividend.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders as dividend.

Other Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive Income consists of income that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss.

Contribution from Shareholders

:'on_s-g!ta‘fiq'ﬂ. with Axis Bank Limited ("the Holding Company")

from Shareholders represents fair value of the employee stock option plan. These options are issued by ABL Employee Welfare Trust (“the Trust") in
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Notes to financiel statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

24, Revenue from operations

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
R in lakhs) (% in Jakhs)

Fees from advisory services and other professional services 12,981.95 10,418.70
Brokerage income 11,077.10 10,858.79
Other operating income

-Profit on sale of devolved securities/dealing error 6.67

-Interest Income on margin money funding 2.98 229.92
Total 24,068.70 21,507.41

25, Other income

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
{® In lakhs) {% in lakhs)

(i) Interest income

Interest on deposit with banks 2,092.60 2,052.66
Interest on staff loan and deposits 1.08 1.31
2,093.68 2,053.97

(i) Net galn/(loss) on fair velue instruments at fair value through profit or loss

On fii ial Instr deslg d at fair value through profit or loss 531.54 514.04
Total gain/{loss) on falr value changes 531.54 514.04
Fair value changes:

Realised 410,74 504.47
Unrealised 120.80 9.57
Total gain/(loss) on falr value changes 531.54 514.04

(iii) Miscellaneous Income

Reversal of provision/liability no longer required 329.71 98.26
Profit on sale of fixed assets - 2.25
Miscellaneous Income 11.98 13.96
Foreign exchange gain / (loss) 7.71 29.83
349.40 144.30

Total 2,974.62 2,712.31

26. Finance costs

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
R in lakhs) (X in lakhs)

Interest on overdraft 47.2% 41.83
Interest on lease payment 10.37 4.48
Total 57.66 46.31

27. impairment of financial instrumants

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(X in lakhs) {X in lakhs)

Trade Receivables 64.36 43.52
- Provision for bad and doubtful debts 101.45
- Bad debts written off 0.05
- Reversal of provision of doubtful debts (37.14)

Total 64.36 43.51

28, Employee beneflts expense

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(¥ in lakhs) {¥ in lakhs)

nus 7,855.90 7,762.09
ent and other funds 131.33 93.75
to employees (Refer to Note No 45) 3,402.79
rto Note No 39) 54.32 96.34

170.45 120.42

=y v ﬁv =\ L
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29. Depreclation and amortlzation exp

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(X in lakhs) { in lakhs)
Depreciation of tangible assets 101.38 66.30
Amortization of intangible assets 20.88 9,39
Total 122.26 75.69
30. Other exp

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

{T in lakhs) {¥ in lakhs)
Stamp duty 277.08 334.43
Trade confirmation charges 504.58 467.30
Brokerage expenses 618.49 1,327.68
Stock exchange expenses 484,68 431.43
Printing and stationary* 22.38 76.91
Electricity & water charges 74.83 82.10
Rent 669.03 779.07
Repairs & maintenance - others 141.50 90.98
CSR expenditure (Refer to Note No 31) 321.55 379.10
Insurance 7.32 8.45
Rates and taxes 38.80 51.834
Professional fees* 529.34 1,257.67
Office expenses* 145.15 21,20
Deputation expenses 209.47 268.21
Telephone, fax & internet 57.73 83,17
Loss on sale of devolved securities/dealing error - 13.06
Travelling & conveyance expenses 242.49 364.71
Director’s sitting fees 17.50 14.50
Auditors remuneration: - B

- For audit 14.00 12.88

- For limited review 4.00 -

- Other 555 1.00
Loss on fair value of staff loans and deposits - 4.07
Miscellaneous expenses 672.82 566.22
Total 5,058.29 6,635.98

*includes direct expenses pertaining to advisory services and other professional services amounting to INil (Previous Year: Y680.02 lakhs).

G
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31

32

32.1

Details of CSR expenditure:

(< in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March , 2020 31 March , 2019
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 321.55 379.09
b) Amount spent during the year 321.55 379.10

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

ii) On purposes other than (i) above 321.55 379.10
Income Tax Expense:

(¥ in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March , 2020 31 March , 2019
Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 3,526.00 3,407.00

Adjustments for current tax of prior years (77.13) (173.74)
Total Current Tax 3,448.87 3,233.26
Deferred tax expense (income)

Increase in deferred tax assets (Refer Note 33) 21.66 (15.74)
Total deferred tax expense/(income ) 21.66 (15.74)
Total tax expense 3,470.53 3,217.52
Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March , 2020 31 March , 2019
Profit/{Loss) before tax expenses 10,125.96 9,345.63
Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 25.168% 2,548.50 3,265.74
{FY 2018-2019 — 34.944%)
Tax effect of:
Remeasurement of deferred tax due to change in rate 12.89 -
Capital gain on sale of shares (4.12) (3.87)
Remeasurement of gratuity through OCI 9.10 36.93
Other Non—deductible expenses 942.37 66.63
Interest Expense u/s 234B 22.60 -
Interest Expense u/s 234C 16.32 25.84
Tax in respect of earlier years (77.13) (173.74)
Total tax expense 3,470.53 3,217.52
Effective tax rate 34.27% 34.43%

The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision
for income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and re-measured the balance of net deferred tax assets, basis the
rate prescribed in the aforesaid section and recognised the effect of change in the profit and loss account. The
remeasurement has resulted in a write down of the net deferred tax assets pertaining to earlier years by 12.89 lakhs

which has been fully charged to the statement of profit and Loss.
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35

Earnings per share

Particulars

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March , 2020 March , 2019
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the 6,655.43 6,128.11
company (A) (X in lakhs)
Weighted Average number of shares issued for Basic 735 735
EPS (B)
Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS ( c) - -
Weighted Average number of shares issued for 735 735
Diluted EPS {D= B+C)
Basic EPS in¥ 9.06 8.34
Diluted EPS in¥ 9.06 8.34
Contingent liabilities & commitments (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars As at Gaist ke
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 01 April , 2018

Contingent Liabilities
{A) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as 25.00 25.00 25.00
debts*
(B) Tax Demands under litigations #

For Service Tax 2,135.07 2,160.11 2,160.11

For Income Tax 3.13 15.64 112.83

For Property Tax 63.07 63.07 63.07
(C ) Outstanding bank guarantee - - 5.00
Total Contingent Liabilities 2,226.27 2,263.82 2,366.01
Commitments
(A) Capital commitments 29.94 7.01 5.67
Total Commitments 29.94 7.01 5.67

*The Company is facing certain litigations with respect to alleged non disclosures in respect of investment banking jobs
handled by the Company. The Management believes that its position will likely be upheld and the outcome of these
proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and result of operations.

#The Company is contesting the demands and the management believes that its position will likely be upheld in the
appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised. The
management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the

Company's financial position and results of operations.
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37

38

A. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particuions March , 2020 March , 2019
Deputation expenses 209.47 254.90
Professional Fees 50.61 28.76
Travelling and conveyance 59.96 116.63
Trade Confirmation charges 168.33 170.03
Others 159.71 57.63

B. Earnings in foreign currency for the year ended 31 March , 2020: Rs. 484.16 lakhs (31 March, 2019: Rs. Rs.3024.31
lakhs ) from advisory services and other professional service

Derivatives

The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the Balance Sheet date:

As at 31 March ,2020
Particulars Currency Foreign Currency in (X in lakhs)
Lakhs
Trade Receivables UsD 1.33 100.60
Bank Balances uUsD 0.04 2.94
As at 31 March ,2019
. Foreign Currency in .
P 3 in lakh:
articulars Currency Lakhs (X in lakhs)
. UsD 3.39 234.67
Trade Receivables GBP 011 964
Advances UsD 0.004 0.24
Bank Balances usD 0.07 4.88
As at 01 April, 2018
. Foreign Currency in .
P /| T in lakh
articulars Currency Lakhs (T in lakhs}
. usD 24.38 1,589.06
Trade Receivables GBP 0.009 078

s




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
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39 Employee Benefits

A Long term employee benefit obligations
The compensated absences charge for the year ended 31 March, 2020 based on actuarial valuation amounting to ¥20.13 lakhs
(31 March, 2019 %7.61 lakhs) has been charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B  Post Employment Obligations

. Defined contribution plans
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund

The Company has recognized the following amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Contribution to provident
and other funds in Employee Benefit Expense for the year:

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan -

(T in lakhs)
i For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
Particulars
March , 2020 March, 2019
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 131.30 93.70
ii. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a year of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of

service. The gratuity plan is funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

Change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligations ¥ in lakhs)

. For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
Particulars

March . 2020 March , 2019

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the vear 971.27 1,047.49
Interest Cost 72.65 80.45
Current Service Cost 55.02 78.26
Past Service Cost B =
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 0.24 19.48
{Benefit Paid From the Fund) (86.23) (147.56)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic - =
Assumptions
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial
Assumptions 44.83 9.88
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience (80.72) (116.72)
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the year 977.07 971.27
Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets (¥ in lakhs)

. For the year ended 31| For the year ended 31
Particulars

March ., 2020 March . 2019

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 980.62 811.98
Interest Income 73.35 62.36
Contributions by the Employer 0.77 254.99
Expected Contributions by the Employees - -
Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions 0.24 -
{Benefit Paid from the Fund) (86.23) {147.56)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.25 (1.16)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the vear 969.01 980.62

S
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39

Employee Benefits {Contd.)

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Asat . Asjat
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 01 April , 2018
(Present Value of Benefit Oblieation at the end of the year) (977.07) (971.27) (1,047.49)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 969.01 980.62 811.98
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (8.06) 9.35 (235.51)
Net {Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (8.06) 9.35 (235.51)
Net Interest Cost for the Current year (T in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March , 2020 31 March , 2019
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the year 971.27 1,047.49
(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year) (980.62) (811.98)
Net Liability/(Asset) at the Beginning (9.35) 235.51
Interest Cost 72.65 80.45
{Interest Income) {73.35) {62.36)
Net Interest Cost for Current year (0.70) 18.09
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current year (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March , 2020 31 March , 2019
Current Service Cost 55.02 78.26
Net Interest Cost (0.70) 18.09
Past Service Cost - -
Expenses Recognized 54.32 96.34
Expenses Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) for Current year (T in lakhs)
particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March , 2020 31 March , 2019
Current Service Cost (35.89) (106.84)
Net Interest Cost (0.25) 1.16
Past Service Cost B -
Expenses Recognized (36.14) {105.69)
Balance Sheet Reconciliation (< in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March. 2020 31 March, 2019 01 Aoril . 2018
Opening Net Liability {9.35) 235.51 79.77
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 54.32 96.34 329.36
Expenses Recognized in OCI (36.14) {105.69) (93.86)
Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In - 19.48 B
Net (Liabilify)/Asset Transfer Out - - -
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - - -
{Employer's Contribution) (0.77) {254.99) (79.77)
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 8.06 (9.35) 235.51
Categories of plan assets are as follows: (¥ in lakhs)
particul As at As at As at
articulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 | 01 April, 2018
Insurer managed funds 969.01 980.62 811.98
Total 969.01 980.62 811.98
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39 Employee Benefits (Contd.)

Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars

Discount rate

Salary growth rate

Withdrawal rate (per annum)

{Z in lakhs)
As at As at As at
31 March, 2020|31 March, 2019| 01 April , 2018
7.48 7.68 7.68
7.00 7.00 7.00
10.00 10.00 10.00

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

(% in lakhs)

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
RRIEEE Asat Asat Asat Asat
31 March, 2020|31 March, 2019|31 March, 2020(31 March, 2019
Discount rate- Delta Effect of 0.5% {25.70) {24.32) 27.12 25.63
Salary growth rate- Delta Effect of 0.5% 13.31 12.93 {13.33) {13.08)
Attrition Rate- Delta Effect of 0.5% 4.60 5.89 {4.85) {6.20)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitlvity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Interest Rate Risk

Investment Risk

Salary Risk

Asset Liability Matching Risk

Mortality risk

Concentration Risk

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the
liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to
market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end ofthe reporting period on government
bonds. Ifthe return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create aplan deficit. Currently, for the
plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other
debt instruments.

The present value ofthe defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level
will increase the plan's liability.

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule
101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only,
plan does not have any longevity risk.

Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a
default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies
have to follow regulatory guidelines.

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2021 are ¥81.17 lakhs

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years (31 March , 2019 — 7 years, 01 April, 2018 - 7 years).

Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments from the Fund {Z in lakhs)
1st Following | 2nd Following | 3rd Following | 4th Following | 5th Following | Sum of Years 6
Year Year Year Year Year To 10
31 March 2020
Defined benefit obligation {gratuity) 126.58 105.85 100.33 126.40 102.01 414.54
31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligation {gratuity) 149.70 106.53 102.65 97.76 122,26 436.22
TR NN
O01-ADrT 2618 \
Defined ben igation {gratuity) 110.24 104.30 102.41 100.97 97.84 522.93
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Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure
and maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other strategic investment plans. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019 and as at
April 1, 2018.The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt’ to 'equity'. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Equity comprises all components of equity including share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity share holders.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.

(T in lakhs)
Particulars 31’::::!*‘ As at As at
2050 * | 31March, 2019 | 01 April,, 2018

Debt (long-term and short-term borrowings T 96.35 2,098.37 -
including current maturities)
Less: cash and bank balances 25,159.16 24,204.76 36,840.98
Adjusted net debt (25,062.81) (22,106.39) (36,840.98)
Total Equity 39,796.58 34,797.18 42,740.69
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio NA NA NA

Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

(T in lakhs)
March,
Particulars 01 April, 2019 Cash Flows Others* 31 2 o:(r)c
Borrowings 1,954.43 (1,954.43) - -
Lease Liability 143.94 (47.58) 96.35
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,098.37 {2,002.01) - 96.35
(Rs in Lakhs)
1 March,
Particulars 01 April, 2018 Cash Flows Others* 3 20:;:
Borrowings - 1,954.43 1,954.43
Lease Liability - (14.52) 158.45 143.94
Total liabilities from financing activities - 1,939.91 158.45 2,098.37

*Others- Represent Lease Liability recognised as per Ind AS 116

%
M

W—"



AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

a“

Related Party Disclosures

As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures {Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Company are as follows:

Name of related parties and nature of relationship:

Description of relatlonship

Name of the related party

Holding Company

Axis Bank Limited {"ABL")

Fellow Subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken

Axis Finance Limited ("AFL")

Axis Securities Limited ("ASL")

Subsidiary Company

Axis Capital USA LLC {("ACUL")

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and its relatives

Mr. Amitabh Chaudhary (Chairperson w.e.f. 17th January,
2019)

Ms. Shikha Sharma {Chairperson till 31st December, 2018)

Mr. Salil Pitale {(Joint Managing Director and Co CEQ w.e.f.
4th December, 2018)

Mr. Chirag Negandhi (Joint Managing Director and Co CEO
w.e.f. 4th December, 2018)

Mr. Dharmesh Mehta (Managing Director and CEO till 4th
December, 2018)

Mr. Mitesh Mehta (Relative of Managing Director and CEO
till 4th December, 2018)

Mr. Rajeev Anand (Director w.e.f. 17th January, 2019)

Mr. Samir Barua (Independent Director)

Mr. Bahram Vakil {Independent Director)

Ms. Sutapa Banerjee (Independent Director w.e.f. 17th
January, 2019}

Mr. Manish Chokhani {Independent Director till 22nd
October, 2018)

Details of related party transactions:

{¥ in lakhs)
. Key
Subsid| Fell
Particulars Holding Company ubsidiary ) o‘w Management Total
Company Subsidiary
Personnel
Income
Brokerage Income 9.47 i - z 9.47,
(12.45) : - - (12.45)
Brokerage Income {ASL. = 2 = = =
E {250 | i (1.42) - {1.42)
Bank interest 936.28 o = - 936.28
{910.94) : - - (910.94)
Advisory Income 924.00 i - 924.00
(23.33) - B - {23.33)
Reimbursement of expense received 26.43 = 2 = 26.43
{0.24) al i . (0.24)
Expenses
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and its
relatives#
Mr. Chirag Negandhi (from 04-12-2018) - = - 369.73 369.73
= = = (31.42) {31.42)
Mr. salil Pitale (from 04-12-2018) = 1 . 366.03 366.03
- - 2 (30.19) (30.19)
Mr. Dharmesh Mehta {upto 04-12-2018) =! - = .
= - (1,047.63) (1,047.63)
wtesh Mehta (upto 04-12-2018) = - "
o . - - - (167.14) {167.14)
E;i_ﬁL ;IJ‘ nt of expense paid 1,242.83 9.46 1,252.29
\b\?’_. (1,389.36) {0.78) (1,390.14)
Zo oW 36.10 : E - 36.10
f C 5 paid
A1), - - = "
= - 126.74 3 z 126.74
C%%emices Paid 0 .
£ E 2 = i
S0 W 47.29 | - - 47.29
axpense
= (41.83) (41.83)|

—
) 57w
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44  Related Party Disclosures (Contd.)

(% in lakhs)
s Key
Subsidiary Fellow
P Col ta
articulars Holding Company Company Subsidiary Management Total
Personnel
Bank charges 4.34 = % 4.34
(3.83) - - (3.83)
Demat charges 0.57 - - 0.57
(1.07) . - {1.07)
Brokerage expense 5.68 z = 5.68
{13.87) - - {13.87)
= - 11.59 11.59
Brokerage expense (ASL
ge cxpense (S 2 - (19.85) - (19.85)
Other Transactions
Dividend paid 4,226.25 s - - 4,226.25
(11,760.00) = - {11,760.00)
Purchase of fixed assets (AFL) - e = = =
i = {0.28) - {0.28)
Investment % =) = = -
i {495.88) - - (495.88)

Note: Figures in bracket pertain to the previous year.

#Deferred bonus considered in remuneration on payment basis.
As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to key
managerial personnel and relative of key managerial personnel are not included above.

C Key management personnel P tion (T in lakhs}
N For the year ended | For the year ended
Rerticulars 31 March , 2020 31 March , 2019
Short Term Employee Benefits* - -
Share Based Payments 660.59 -

* As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts pertaining to key
managerial personnel and refative of key managerial personnel are not included above.

D Detalls of balances outstanding for related party transactions:

(T in lakhs)
= As at As at As at
Nature of Transactiol
ST G SIES| Stec pansy) " 31 March, 2020 | 31 March, 2019 | 01 April, 2018

Fixed deposit {including interest accrued)

Holding Company 9,458.83 12,159.16 10,584.68
Share Capital 7.350.00 7,350.00 7,350.00
Current account 5,664.56 332.60 5,207.08
Overdraft Account Balance* - 1,954.43 -
Other pavables 46.08 0.51 27.77
Tarde receivable - - 19.13
Bank Guarantee outstanding - 5.00

Subsidiary Company Others Receivable - 27.14 25.58
Investment 495.88 495.88 -

Fellow Subsidiaries (ASL) Trade pavables 0.11 - -

* Closing credit line obtained by the Company from Axis Bank Limited is ¥20,000 lakhs (Previous Year: 320,000 lakhs)

]

E The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
a5 Share based payments

2019 - Employee Stock Option Plan

ABL Employee Welfare Trust ("the Trust") in consultation with Axis Bank Limited (“the Holding Company") has granted equity options of Axis Bank
Limited to the Executive employees of the Company under the Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (“ ESOP 2019”) with effect from 30 August 2019 to
enable the employees of the Company to participate in the future growth and success of the Company. The Holding Company has not charged any cost
to the Company relating to ESOPs granted to the employees of the Company.

These options which confer a right but not an obligation on the employee to apply for equity shares of the Holding Company once the terms and

conditions set forth in the Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (“ESOP 2019”) and the option agreement have been met. Vesting of options would be
subject to continued employment with the Company and meeting the requisite performance parameters.

The Company has below share based payment arrangement under ESOP 2019 as on 31 March 2020

Number of opti ji i
Particulars Date of grants of option Exerc'|se price
granted (in%)
Grant | 30 August 2019 11,55,000 -
Conditions

Vesting condition Continued employment with the Company and fulfilment of performance parameters

Exercise period Exercisable after vesting period

Method of settlement Equity
Vesting schedule
Grant| Number of option
expect to be vested
As at 30 April 2020 30% 3,39,000
As at 30 April 2021 30% 3,42,000
As at 30 April 2022 40% 4,54,000

Reconciliation of outstanding employee stock options:

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (% in [akhs)
. 5 A Weighted average

Particulars Shares arlfmg out of Rang? of e_xemse Welg'hted .aver'age remaining
options prices (in ) exercise price (inJ) contractual life

Outstanding as at 01 April 2019 - - - -

Add: Options granted during the year 11,55,000 - - 1.77 years

Less: Options cancelled during the year 20,000 - - 1,77 years

Less: Options exercised during the year - - - -

Options outstanding at 31 March 2020 11,35,000 - - 1.18 years

Exercisable options at 31 March 2020 - - - B

Valuation of stock option
Options have been valued based on fair value method as described under Ind AS 102 Share based payments, using Black Scholes valuation options
pricing model, by using the fair value of the company's shares on the grant date.

ch

Grant 1 Grant | Grant |
Particulars (Vesting date 30 (Vesting date 30 {Vesting date 30
April , 2020) April , 2021) April , 2022)

Grant date 30-Aug-19 30-Aug-19 30-Aug-19

Share price (in ) 663.90 663.90 663.90

Exercise price {in %) - - -

Expected volatility 28.00% 28.00% 28.00%

Expected life- In years 0.67 1.67 2.67

Expected dividend 0.71% 0.71% 0.71%

Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 5.87% 5.93% 6.10%

Fair value (in ) 660.75 656.07 651.43
" Expensas Shamary of shared-based payment (% in lakhs)

A = For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
g
Pt March , 2020 March , 2019 ( o
3,402.79 - W
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47

Segment Reporting

Basis of Segment

The Company has a single reporting segment and hence no separate disclosure has been provided. The Managing Directors
and CEO of the Company has been considered as the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

(X in lakhs)
Disclosure on Geographical Segment For the year ended |For the year ended 31
31 March , 2020 March, 2019
Revenue from customers outside India 484.16 3,024.31
Revenue from customers within India 23,584.54 18,483.10
Total 24,068.70 21,507.41

Information about major customers: No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the
year ended 31 March, 2020 and 31 March, 2019.

The outstanding balance on account of principal and interest as on 31 March 2020 remaining unpaid to any supplier
registered as small and medium enterprises under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act
2006" is ¥17.10 lakhs (Previous Year: ¥11.93 lakhs). The Company has not delayed in making payments to any of the parties
registered as small and medium enterprises under MSMED, and there has been no interest accrued or paid in this regard.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Qualitative Disclosures :

The Company is engaged in the business institutional broking, distribution of financial products and investment banking. In
accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the revenue is accounted in the following manner for
each head:

Brokerage Income

Brokerage income in relation to stock broking activity is recognized as per contracted rates at the execution of transactions
on behalf of the customers on a trade date basis.

Income from Investment Banking
Income from Investment Banking consists of Income from issue management and financial advisory services, underwriting
commission and Selling commissions/brokerage generated from primary market operations.

a Issue Management and Advisory Income
In case of these issue management and advisory transactions, the performance obligation and its transaction price is
enumerated in contract with the customer.

Revenue associated with these remaining performance obligations typically depends on the occurrence of future events or
underlying asset values, and is not recognized until the outcome of those events or values are known. In case of contracts,
which have a component of success fee or variable fee, the same is considered in the transaction price when the
uncertainty regarding the consideration is resolved.

b Underwriting Commission
The Company recognises underwriting commission over a period of satisfaction of performance obligation as it is continuing
service.

¢ Selling commissions/brokerage generated from primary market operations
Selling commissions/brokerage generated from primary market operations i.e. procuring subscriptions from investors for
public offerings of companies, mutual funds, etc. are recorded on determination of the amount due to the Company, once
/tg_e-__ llotment of securities are completed.




AXIS CAPITAL LUMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020
48 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Contd.)
d Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient under Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about
remaining performance obligations that have original expected duration of one year or less.

e Contract Liability relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contract. Contract Liabilities are
recognized as revenue on completing the performance obligation or over a period of time in case of continuing contracts.

Il Quantitative Disclosures:

a The Company has recognised following amounts relating revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(% in lakhs)
For the year ended |For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March , 2020 March , 2019
Revenue from contracts with customers 24.,059.04 21,277.49
Other operating income 9.66 229.92
Total Revenue 24,068.70 21,507.41
Impairment loss on receivables 170.03 105.73
b Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by major services and timing of revenue recognition:
(¥ in lakhs)
For the year ended |For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March, 2020 March , 2019
Advisorv services and other professional services 12,936.23 10,338.08
Underwriting Commission 55.37 310.54
Brokerage Income 11,077.10 10,858.79
Total 24.068.70 21,507.41
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 24,013.33 21,196.87
Over a period of time 55.37 310.54
Total 24,068.70 21,507.41

¢ Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with

(T in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 01 April , 2018
Receivables 88,921.37 36,063.00 86,748.45
Contract Liability - - 95.62

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period
and the movement thereof:

Nature of Contract : Underwriting Commission

(% in lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Opening Balance of Contract Liabilities - 95.62
Revenue Recognised during the vear - 95.62
ce of Contract Liabilities
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

50 Financial Risk Management
The company has in place comprehensive risk management polciy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various risks
pertaining to its business. Along with the risk management policy, an adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size
and complexity of its business, is maintained to align with the philosophy of the company. Together they help in achieving the
business goals and objectives consistent with the company's strategies to prevent inconsistencies and gaps between its policies and
practices. The Board of Directors/committtees reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management policy and internal
control system. The company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.
The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
e Credit risk
e Liquidity risk and
¢ Market risk

A Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial
assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.
i. Trade and Other Receivables
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial
assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has
always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

(¥ in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 | 31 March, 2019 | 01 Aoril , 2018

Outstanding for a period not exceeding six months 88,908.10 36,002.98 86,333.15
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 183.29 165.73 648.08
Gross Trade Receivables 89.091.39 36,168.71 86,981.23
Less: Impairment Loss 170.03 105.73 232.78
Net Trade Receivables 88,921.35 36.062.99 86,748.45

On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The Company
computes the expected credit loss allowance as per simplified approach for trade receivables based on available external and
internal credit risk factors such as the ageing of its dues, market information about the customer and the Company’s historical
experience for customers. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is based on the
ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

The Company has assessed credit risk on an individual basis for trade receivables amounting to INil (31 March, 2020}, 358.86 lakhs
(31 March, 2019), ¥414.08 lakhs (01 April, 2018) and no loss allowance has been recognised for such trade receivables.

The following table summarizes the changes in loss allowances measured using expected credit loss model -

(T in lakhs)
particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 | 31 March, 2019 | 01 Aoril . 2018
Opening Provision 105.73 232.78 82.82
Provision during the year 101.45 104.83 232.78
Reversal of Provision {37.14) (231.88) {82.82)
Closing Provision 170.03 105.73 232.78

ash and bank balances
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AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

50 Financial Risk Management (Contd.)

ili. Loans
The Company has given loans to their staff and hence the Company do not foresee any credit risk and hence no impairment

provision is made.

iv. Other Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets majorly consists of OPE recoverable from the clients . Provision for Impairment Loss for 31 March, 2020 - ¥ Nil

( 31 March, 2019 - 32.92 lakhs)

The following table summarizes the changes in loss allowances measured using expected credit loss model -

(< in lakhs)
) As at As at As at
Particulars )

31 March, 2020 | 31 March, 2019 | 01 April , 2018

Opening Provision - 2.62 22.51
Provision during the year - - 2.62
Reversal of Provision - {2.62) (22.51)
Closing Provision - - 2.62

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and

undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments.

(T in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than
1 year or less 1-3 years Total
31 March, 2020 3 vears
Payvables
Trade pavables 92,826.36 - - 92,826.36
Other pavables 2.16 - - 2.16
Borrowings 55.39 40.96 - 96.35
Other financial liabilities 9.81 - % 9.81
Total 92,893.72 40.96 - 92,934.68
(< in fakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than
1year or less 1-3 years Total
31 March, 2019 3 vears
Pavables
Trade pavables 32,682.98 - - 32,682.98
Other pavables 1.08 - - 1.08
Borrowings 2,002.01 96.35 - 2,098.37
Other financial liabilities 15.44 - = 15.44
Total 34,701.51 96.35 - 34,797.87
(% in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than
) 1year or less 1-3years Total
01 Aopril_ 2018 3 yvears
Pavables
Trade pavables 82,426.24 - - 82,426.24
i—Gther pavables 28.53 - - 28.53
- |BorrbudinRs, = - - -
1 | liabilities 5.61 = E 5.61
82,460.38 - - 82,460.38
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020
50 Financial Risk Management (Contd.)

C Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect
the company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The company’s exposure to, and
management of, these risks is explained below.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its trade receivables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Indian Rupee

Exposure to currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March, 2020, 31 March, 2019 and 01 April , 2018 are as

below:
(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 01 April , 2018
Trade and Other Receivables 100.60 244,55 1,589.85
Bank Balances 2.94 4.88 -
Advances - 0.24 -
Year End Spot Rates
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 01 April , 2018
usD 75.63 69.15 65.18
GBP - 90.51 92,28

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against the foreign currencies at March 31 would have
affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and affected profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of
sales.

Sensitivity analysis of 1% change in exchange rate at the end of reporting period:

Particulars Foreign Currency Exposure (In Iakhs).
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 1, 2018
1% Depreciation in INR-Impact on 1.04 249 15.90
Profit and Loss/Equity
1% Appreciation in INR-Impact on (1.04) (2.49) (15.90}
Profit and Loss/Equity

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
long term debt obligation at floating interest rates. The company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are
therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will
fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end pftiie=raporting period are as follows: U}OJ
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50

Financial Risk Management (Contd.)

(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 01 April , 2018
Floating rate borrowings - 1,954.43 -
Interest Rate Sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on
floating rate borrowings, as follows:

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2019
Particulars 100bp Increase 100bp decrease
Financial Liability
Variable rate Instrument
Floating Rate Borrowings 19.54 (19.54)

(iii) Price Risk

The company's exposure to mutual fund price risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in the balance
sheet at fair value through profit or loss. Since the mutual fund are highly liquid debt oriented funds company does not have a
material price risk exposure.

Other Risk - Impact of Covid -19

Financial instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March, 2020 is Rs.11,520 lakhs and financial instruments carried at amortised
cost as at 31 March, 2020 is Rs.495.88 lakhs. These financial assets are classified as Level 1 as at 31 March, 2020. The fair value of
these assets is marked to an active market which factors the uncertainties arising out of COVID-19. The financial assets carried at
fair value by the Company are mainly investments in liquid debt securities and accordingly, any material volatility is not expected.

Financial assets of Rs.25,159 lakhs as at 31 March, 2020 carried at amortised cost is in the form of cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits and earmarked balances with banks where the Company has assessed the counterparty credit risk. Trade receivables of
88,921 lakhs as at 31 March, 2020 forms a significant part of the financial assets carried at amortised cost, which is valued
considering provision for allowance using expected credit loss method. The Company does not foresee any impact of Covid-19 on

these balances.




AXIS CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020

51 First time adoption of Ind AS

These are the company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting
policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March, 2020, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended
31 March , 2019 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 01 April, 2018 (the
company’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted
the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition
from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company’s financial position, financial performance and
cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

A Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in
the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

i. Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to fair value of its property, plant and equipment as
recognised in financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per previous GAAP
and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition or apply principles of Ind AS retrospectively.
Ind AS 101 also permits the first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its
property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to
Ind AS. This exemption can be also used for intangible assets covered by Ind-AS 38.

The Company has opted to consider the carrying value of property, plant and equipment, Intangible
assets as deemed cost as at the transition date.

ii. Estimates
An company’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent
with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect
any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in
error. Ind AS estimates as at 01 April, 2018 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made
in conformity with previous GAAP.The company made estimates for following items in accordance with
Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

iii. Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an company to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the

the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. \N\/
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51

First time adoption of Ind AS (Contd.)

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an company to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables

represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

i. Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at date of transition (01 April , 2018)

(< in lakhs)
Particulars Notes IGAA,P ) _Ind-AS Ind AS
Reclassified Adjustments
ASSETS
Financials Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,260.66 - 5,260.66
Bank Balance other than cash & cash equivalents 31,580.32 - 31,580.32
Receivable - - -
(i) Trade receivables 86,748.45 - 86,748.45
(i) Other receivables 94.70 - 94.70
Loans a 5.28 (0.22) 5.06
Investments b 10,085.21 250.32 10,335.53
Other financial assets f 428.47 43.60 472.07
Total financial assets 1,34,203.09 293.70 1,34,496.79
Non Financials Assets
Inventories - - -
Current tax assets (net) 968.85 - 968.85
Deferred tax assets (net) [ 104.12 (73.80) 30.32
Property, plant and equipment 79.83 - 79.83
Other Intangible assets 28.50 - 28.50
Intangible assets under development 9,74 - 9.74
Other non-financial assets 137.37 - 137.37
Total non-financial assets 1,328.41 {73.80) 1,254.61
Total Assets 1,35,531.50 219.90 1,35,751.40
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Pavables
Trade pavables 82,426.24 - 82,426.24
Other pavables 28.53 - 28.53
Borrowings - - -
Other financial liabilities 5.61 - 5.61
Total Financial Liabilities 82,460.38 - 82,460.38
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities(Net) 211.31 - 211.31
Provisions e 8,072.15 (13.09) 8,059.06
Other non-financial liabilities f 2,184.34 95.62 2,279.96
Total Liabilities 10,467.80 82.53 10,550.33
EQUITY
Equity Share capital 7,350.00 - 7,350.00
Other Equity ab,c.esg 35,253.32 137.37 35,390.69
Total Equity 42,603.32 137.37 42,740.69
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,35,531.50 219.90 1,35,751.40

e
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020
51  First time adoption of Ind AS (Contd.)

ii. Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at 31 March, 2019

X in lakhs)

g IGAAP- ind-AS
fautian = Reclassified Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Financials Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 335.15 - 335.15
Bank Balance other than cash & cash equivalents 23,869.61 - 23,869.61
Receivable - - -
(i) Trade receivables 36,063.00 - 36,063.00
(ii) Other receivables - - -
Loans a 401 (0.06) 3.95
Investments b 12,316.31 9.57 12,325.88
Other financial assets af 479.96 8.96 488.92
Total financial assets 73,068.04 18.47 73,086.51
Non Financials Assets
Inventories - - -
Current tax assets (net) 1,095.51 - 1,095.51
Deferred tax assets (net) c 52.85 (6.79) 46.06
Property, plant and equipment 83.44 143.94 227.38
Other Intangible assets 2491 - 24.91
Intangible assets under development 26.73 - 26.73
Other non-financial assets 153.36 - 153.36
Total non-financial assets 1,436.80 137.15 1,573.95
Total Assets 74,504.84 155.62 74,660.46
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Pavables
Trade payables 32,682.98 - 32,682.98
Other pavables 1.08 - 1.08
Borrowings g 1,954.43 143.94 2,098.37
Other financial liabilities 15.44 : 15.44
Total Financial Liabilities 34,653.93 143.94 34,797.87
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities(Net) 98.26 - 98.26
Provisions e 4,083.13 {0.97) 4,082.16
Other non-financial liabilities 884.99 - 884.99
Total Liabilities 5,066.38 {0.97) 5,065.41
EQUITY
Equity Share capital 7,350.00 - 7.350.00
Other Equity ab,cefsg 27,434.53 12.65 27,447.18
Total Equity 34,784.53 12.65 34,797.18
Total Liabilities and Equity 74.504.84 155.62 74,660.46

the purpose of this note.

* The previous year figures of financials prepared under IGAAP have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for

O
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First time adoption of ind AS (Contd.)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March, 2019

(Z in lakhs)
Particulars Notes IGAA_P . -Ind-AS Ind AS
Reclassified Adjustments

Revenue from operation f 21,443.50 63.90 21,507.40
Other income a,b 2,961.10 (248.78) 2,712.32
Total Revenue 24,404.60 {184.88) 24,219.72
Finance costs g 41.83 4.48 46.31
Impairment of financial instruments 43.51 - 43.51
Employee benefit expense d 7,976.26 96.34 8,072.60
Depreciation and amortization - 61.17 14.52 75.69
Other expenses aeg 6,638.79 (2.82) 6,635.97
Total Expenditure 14,761.56 112.52 14,874.09
Profit/(loss) before tax 9,643.04 (297.40) 9,345.63
Tax expenses:

Current tax 3,407.00 - 3,407.00

Excess provision for tax of earlier years (173.74) - (173.74)

Deferred Tax c 51.26 (67.00) (15.74)
Total tax expense 3,284.52 (67.00) 3,217.52
Profit/(loss) for the year for continuing operations 6,358.52 (230.40) 6,128.11
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified in profit and loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans d - 105.69 105.69
Income tax relating to the items that we not be reclassified to profit
and loss
Other comprehensive income - 105.69 105.69
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,358.52 (124.71) 6,233.80
* The previous year figures of financials prepared under IGAAP have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for
the purpose of this note.
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iv. Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March, 2019 and 01 April , 2018

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Notes As at 31, March | Asat01, April
2019 2018
Total equity {shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP 34,784.53 42,603.32
Adjustments:
Interest Income on Interest Free Loans and Deposits a 1.09 0.12
Fair value gain/(loss) on interest free loans and deposits a (4.07) {0.34)
Fair valuation of Investments b 9.57 250.31
Reversal of Lease Equalisation e 0.96 13.09
Impact of revenue as per Ind AS 115 f 11.89 {52.01)
Tax on above adjustments [ (6.79) (73.80)
Total 34,797.18 42,740.69
v. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March , 2019
(X in lakhs)
Particulars Notes | 31, March 2019
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP (A) 6,358.52
Adjustments:
Fair value gain/(loss) on interest free loans and deposits a (4.07)
Interest Income on interest free loans and deposits a 1.31
Fair valuation of Investments b (240.74)
Reversal of Lease Equalisation e (12.12)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans d (105.69)
Impact of revenue as per Ind AS 115 f 63.90
Tax on Above Adjustments c 67.00
Net impact of Ind AS adjustments (B) (230.41)
Profit/(loss) for the period as per Ind AS (A+B)=C 6,128.11
Adjustments to Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans - OCI d 105.69
Net impact of Ind AS adjustments (D) 105.69
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS (C+D) 6.233.80

vi.

Effects of Ind AS adoption on Cash Flows for year ended 31 March, 2019

There are no material adjustments to the Statement of Cash flows as reported under the previous GAAP.

Notes

a Valuation of loans and security deposits

As per Ind AS 109, all financial assets and liabilities are required to be measured at their respective fair value. The interest
free security deposit and loans given are financial assets and are thus required to be measured at present value using an
appropriate discount rate. The difference between the fair value and the transaction price has been recognised as an
expense. Subsequently, these loans and deposits have been measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate

(‘EIR’) and the resultant interest is accounted as interest income.

b Investments measured at FVTPL
The company has designated investments in mutual funds at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).At the date of
transition to Ind AS, difference between the fair value of investment and IGAAP carrying amount has been recognised in
Retained Earnings and for the year ended March 31, 2019, fair value gain has been recognised in profit and Loss account.
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d Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation
Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS the Company recognised costs related to post-employment
defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, actuarial gains and losses are charged to
profit or loss, however in Ind AS the actuarial gains and losses are recoghised through other
comprehensive income.

e Lease Equalisation

Under Indian GAAP, lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern of the users benefit. Under Ind AS, lease payments
under an operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless (a) another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern of the user’s benefit; or (b) the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation for cost increases. The Company has accounted for the lease payments
without considering the straight lining effect over the lease term.

f Revenue Recognition
The Company recognised revenue as per milestone in the contract on the stage of completion of
performance obligations and terms of agreement with the client. However as per Ind AS 115, the
Company has recognised revenue amounting to Rs. 63.90 lakhs over a period of time in case of
performance obligation is satisfied over a period of time.

g Due to this amendment of Ind AS 116- Leases, the right-of-use asset is recognised since the
commencement of the lease, and discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate on the
date of transaction. Accordingly, a right-of-use asset of Rs. 158.45 lakhs and a corresponding lease
liability of Rs.158.45 lakhs has been recognized on the date of transaction. Accordingly on 31, March,
2019, amortised depreciation amounting to Rs. 14.52 lakhs and interest expenses of Rs. 4.48 lakhs has
been reclassified from Other Expenses.

52 The Company has received margin money in the form of securities from the clients in the normal
course of business which are either pledged in favour of the Company or are transferred to the
Company’s Depository Participant account. Such securities are kept by the Company in a separate
Depository Participant account maintained by the Company for all such purposes.
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A

Disclosure related to Leases

Additions to Right to Use
(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March, As at31 As at 01 April,
2020 March, 2019 2018
Lease hold Property - 158.45 -
Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period
(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March, As at 31 As at 01 April,
2020 March, 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 143.94 - -
Additions - 158.45 -
Depreciation charge for the year 47.58 14.52 -
Balance at the end of the year 96.35 143.94 -
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
{% in lakhs)
Maturity analysis — As at 31 March, As at31 As at 01 April,
contractual undiscounted cash flows 2020 March, 2019 2018
Less than one year 60.85 57.95 -
One to five years 41.89 102.74 -
More than five years - - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 March 102.74 160.69 -
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial 96.35 143.94
position at the year ended -
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss
(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March, 2020 | March, 2019
Interest on lease liabilities 10.37 4.48
Expenses relating to short-term leases 667.59 777.63
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 1.44 144
Total 679.40 783.55
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March, 2020 | March, 2019
Operating Activity 669.03 779.07
Financial Activity 57.95 15.00
Total Cash outflow for leases 726.98 798.07
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